BY-LAWS OF

COOL HILL PARK ADDITIONS 1 & 2 PROPERTY OWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC.

<u>PURPOSE</u>: The purpose of this Corporation is to maintain, operate, provide for and establish facilities and common owned privileges belonging to each member of Cool Hill Park Additions 1 & 2 Property Owners Association, Inc.

ARTICLE I

MEMBERSHIP

SECTION I. MEMBERSHIP: A member is defined as any natural person who has been accepted into membership and who owns one or more lots in Cool Hill Park Subdivision, Additions 1 & 2, Walworth County, Wisconsin, not encumbered by outstanding fees or assessments. Ownership of membership is limited to no more than two natural persons per lot. This clause does not limit a person to one membership if that person owns more than one lot.

SECTION II. TRANSFER OF TITLE: (*) Membership in the Corporation is transferrable upon sale or transfer of the property to which said membership is appurtenant, provided, however, that all dues, fees, and assessments have been paid. Pursuant to Wis. Stat. § 30.133, riparian rights, including pier rights, may not be transferred; all pier slips remain the property management of the Corporation. (*Amended November 20, 2015)

SECTION III. FUTURE MEMBERSHIPS: * Any natural person owning one or more lots in Cool Hill Park Subdivision, Additions 1 & 2, Walworth County, Wisconsin or one or more lots in Cali Acres that may use an outlot located in Block 7 of the Plat of Cool Hill Park, Addition 1, Walworth County, Wisconsin, may apply to the Corporation for a membership. The membership fee shall be established by the Board of Directors. * (Amended June 14, 2003).

SECTION IV. DEFAULT OR SUSPENSION OF MEMBERSHIP: (*) When any member shall be in default in the payment of dues, fees, or assessments for a period of ninety (90) days from the beginning of the period for which such debts become payable, his/her/their/its membership privileges, including park and pier usage, shall be automatically and immediately suspended; provided, however, that the Board shall have the authority to restore a Member's privileges pursuant to a written agreement for repayment with the delinquent Member.

If outstanding dues, fees, or assessments remain unpaid through the end of the current fiscal year, a reinstatement fee of \$100.00 must be paid in addition to all other outstanding debts, including legal fees, to reinstate a delinquent Member's privileges.

(*Amended November 20, 2015)

.

<u>SECTION V.</u> VOTING RIGHTS: Each active membership shall be entitled to one vote on any matter submitted to a vote of the membership. Suspended memberships forfeit their voting privilege until reinstatement to active membership.

^{*}Amended 09/30/2015 and 11/20/2015 updates added to 07/02/2011 document and noted, V.11202015

⁺Amended 7/2/2011, updates added to 5-29-03 document and noted

⁵⁻²⁹⁻⁰³ Re-typed from original undated document. According to archived minutes, these by-laws were ratified November 19, 1989.

SECTION VI. MEMBERSHIP RIGHTS: Active membership owners shall receive all billings, notices of meetings and additional mailings forwarded by the Board of Directors. Active membership owners, their tenants and guests shall have the right to use of the lakefront park and improvements subject to rules and regulations set by the Association. Suspended members have no rights of membership except that of reinstatement as stated above. They will, however, continue to be billed for current dues.

ARTICLE II

MEETINGS OF MEMBERS

SECTION I. ANNUAL MEETINGS: (+) An annual meeting of the members shall be held in the spring of each year for the purpose of electing officers and directors as set forth below and for transaction of other business as may come before the meetings.

SECTION II. SPECIAL MEETINGS: (*) Special meetings of the members may be called by the President, the Board of Directors, or upon delivery to any officer of the Association of a written notice signed by not less than one-third of the members having voting rights which requests a special meeting. Pursuant to Wis. Stat. § 181.0702(1)(b), any request for a special meeting must state the purposes for which the meeting is to be called. (*Amended September 30, 2015)

SECTION III. NOTICE OF MEETINGS: Written notice stating the date, time and place of any meeting of the membership shall be mailed to each member entitled to vote not less than ten nor more than forty days before the date of said meeting. In the case of a special meeting, the purpose for which the meeting is called shall be stated in the notice.

SECTION IV. QUORUM: (+) Ten voting members at any given meeting shall constitute a quorum. Business may only be conducted at a meeting at which a quorum is present. Withdrawal of members from any meeting shall not cause failure of a duly constituted quorum at that meeting.

SECTION V. PROXIES: Each member entitled to a vote at a meeting of members may authorize another member to act for him/her by proxy. Proxies shall be signed, dated and shall indicate the date of the meeting for which they are to be voted. Proxies shall be presented to the Secretary or his/her representative prior to the start of the meeting.

SECTION VI. POWER TO ACT AT ANY MEETING OF THE MEMBERSHIP: * The membership shall have the power to take any lawful action for the good and welfare of the Corporation and its members, including overruling of any act or decision of the Board of Directors or an officer of the Corporation; provided, however, that pursuant to Wis. Stat. §§ 181.0702 and 181.0705, actions at a meeting requested by the members, are limited to those issues set forth in the written request for said meeting. All decisions require a majority vote of those present, a majority vote being defined as fifty percent plus one.

^{*}Amended 09/30/2015 and 11/20/2015 updates added to 07/02/2011 document and noted, V.11202015

⁺Amended 7/2/2011, updates added to 5-29-03 document and noted

⁵⁻²⁹⁻⁰³ Re-typed from original undated document. According to archived minutes, these by-laws were ratified November 19, 1989.

ARTICLE III

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

SECTION I. GENERAL POWERS: The affairs of the Corporation shall be managed by its Board of Directors.

SECTION II. NUMBER, TENURE AND QUALIFICATIONS: (+) The number of directors of the association shall be five. The five directors will be made up of the **three officers and two directors**. Each director will serve a two year term. Election of the officers and directors shall be on the following election schedule:

- A. In the even years there shall be elected a President, Secretary and one Director who shall serve a two year term or until their successors are elected.
- B. In the odd numbered years there shall be elected a Vice-President/Treasurer and one Director who shall serve for a two year term or until their successors are elected.

SECTION III. MEETINGS: A regular meeting of the Board of Directors shall be held in conjunction with the annual meeting of the members without notice other than these by-laws. Additional meetings may be held throughout the year at the discretion of the Board. Such meetings may be held in person or by phone.

Special meetings of the Board of Directors may be called at any time by the President or by request of any two directors.

With the exception of the regular annual meeting, directors must receive notice five days in advance. The advance notice may be waived by agreement of all five directors.

SECTION IV. QUORUM: a simple majority of the Board of Directors shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business.

SECTION V. COMPENSATION: * The President, Vice President/Treasurer and two Directors shall receive no salary for their service. The annual dues for all board members shall be waived; only one tax key. A fee of \$100.00 shall be paid to the Secretary.

*(Amended September 30, 2015).

SECTION VI. REMOVAL: Any directory—may be removed from office by the affirmative vote of a majority of the members entitled to vote for the election of such director taken at a special meeting of members called for that purpose.

SECTION VII. VACANCIES: The Board of Directors may fill any vacancy in their Board happening after any regular annual election or any vacancy created by an increase in the authorized number of directors, until the next succeeding election, by the affirmative vote of a majority of the directors then in office, although less than a quorum.

^{*}Amended 09/30/2015 and 11/20/2015 updates added to 07/02/2011 document and noted, V.11202015

⁺Amended 7/2/2011, updates added to 5-29-03 document and noted

⁵⁻²⁹⁻⁰³ Re-typed from original undated document. According to archived minutes, these by-laws were ratified November 19, 1989.

SECTION VIII. PRESUMPTION OF ASSENT: A director of the association who is present at a meeting of the Board of Directors or a committee thereof at which action on any association matter is taken shall be resumed to have assented to the action taken unless his/her dissent shall be entered in the minutes of the meeting.

SECTION IX. COMMITTEES: The Board of Directors may determine the need for committees, establish such committees and appoint persons thereto.

SECTION X. RULES OF CONDUCT FOR THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS: Subject to the provisions of Chapter 181 of the Wisconsin Statutes, the Corporation's Articles of Incorporation and these By-laws, the Board shall have the right to establish the qualifications of members of the Board and to adopt rules to govern the conduct of Board members and meetings of the Board. (*Amended September 30, 2015)

SECTION XI. RULES AND REGULATIONS FOR PIERS AND COMMUNITY PARK: Subject to, and consistent with, the provisions of Chapter 181 of the Wisconsin Statutes, the Corporation's Articles of Incorporation, these By-laws, and the terms, conditions, and provisions of the Covenants and Restrictions for Cool Hill Park Additions 1 and 2, the Board shall have the right and responsibility to establish rules and regulations to govern the maintenance, upkeep, and use of the Association's Park. Likewise, subject to, and consistent with, the provisions of Chapter 181 of the Wisconsin Statutes, the Corporation's Articles of Incorporation, these By-laws, and the terms, conditions, and provisions of the Covenants and Restrictions for Cool Hill Park Additions 1 and 2, the Board shall have the right and responsibility to establish rules and regulations to govern the maintenance, upkeep, and use of the piers adjacent to the Association's Park. The Board shall further have the right to enforce any rules and regulations adopted pursuant to this Section by means of the assessment of monetary fines against a member and/or by means of legal action commenced in Walworth County Circuit Court. In the event that fines are imposed, the Board may, consistent with Wis. Stat. § 779.70, lien the member's lot(s) as provided in Article VII of these By-Laws. In the event that enforcement action is commenced against a member by the Board, the all costs of such action, including reasonable attorney fees, shall be specially assessed to the member, and if not paid, may, consistent with Wis. Stat. § 779.70, be collected by lien against the lot(s) as provided in Article VII of these By-laws. (*Amended September 30, 2015)

ARTICLE IV

OFFICERS

<u>SECTION I.</u> NUMBER: The principal officers of the association shall be a President, a Vice President/Treasurer, and a Secretary, each of whom shall be elected by the membership. Such other officers and assistant officers as may be deemed necessary may be elected or appointed by the Board of Directors.

SECTION II. ELECTION AND TERM OF OFFICE: (+) The officers of the association shall be elected as set forth in Article III, Section II in accordance with the election schedule. Each officer shall hold office until his/her successor shall have been duly elected or until his/her death or until he/she shall resign or shall have been removed in the manner hereinafter provided.

SECTION III. REMOVAL: Any officer or agent appointed by the Board of Directors may be removed by the Board of Directors whenever, in its judgment, the best interests of the association will be served thereby, but

^{*}Amended 09/30/2015 and 11/20/2015 updates added to 07/02/2011 document and noted, V.11202015

⁺Amended 7/2/2011, updates added to 5-29-03 document and noted

⁵⁻²⁹⁻⁰³ Re-typed from original undated document. According to archived minutes, these by-laws were ratified November 19, 1989.

such removal shall be without prejudice to the contract rights, if any, of the person so removed. Election or appointment shall not of itself create contract rights.

SECTION IV. VACANCIES: A vacancy in any principal office because of death, resignation, removal, disqualification or otherwise, shall be filled by the Board of Directors for the unexpired portion of the term.

<u>SECTION V.</u> PRESIDENT: The President shall be the principal executive officer of the association and, subject to the control of the Board of Directors, shall in general supervise and control all of the business and affairs of the association.

He/she shall, when present, preside at all meetings of the members and of the Board of Directors. He/she may sign, with the Secretary or any other proper officer of the association thereunto authorized by the Board of Directors, membership certificates, any deeds, mortgages, bonds, contracts, or other instruments which the Board of Directors has authorized to be executed; except in cases where the signing and execution thereof shall be expressly delegated by the Board of Directors or by these by-laws to some other officer or agent of the association, or shall be required by law to be otherwise signed or executed; and in general shall perform all duties incident to the office of the President and such other duties as may be prescribed by the Board of Directors from time to time.

SECTION VI. VICE PRESIDENT/TREASURER: (+) In the absence of the President or in the event of his/her death, inability or refusal to act, the Vice President/Treasurer shall perform the duties of the President, and when so acting, shall have all the powers of and be subject to all the restrictions upon the President. The Vice President/Treasurer may sign, with the Secretary, membership certificates of the association and shall perform such other duties as from time to time may be assigned to him/her by the President or by the Board of Directors.

If required by the Board of Directors, as Treasurer he/she shall give a bond for the faithful discharge of his/her duties in such sum and with such surety or sureties, as the Board of Directors shall determine. He/she shall: (a) have charge and custody of and be responsible for all funds and securities of the association, receive and give receipts for monies due and payable to the association from any source whatsoever, and deposit all such monies in the name of the association in such banks, trust companies or other depositories as shall be selected in accordance with the provisions of Article V of these by-laws; and (b) in general perform all of the duties incident to the office of Treasurer and such other duties as from time to time may be assigned him/her by the President or by the Board of Directors.

SECTION VII. SECRETARY: (*) The Secretary shall (a) keep the minutes of the meetings of the members and of the Board of Directors; (b) see that all notices are duly given in accordance with the provisions of these By-laws or as required by law; (c) be custodian of the association's records, except financial records which shall be kept by the Vice President/Treasurer; (d) keep a register of the post office addresses of each member which shall be furnished to the Secretary by each member; (e) sign with the President or Vice President, membership certificates of the association, the issuance of which shall have been authorized by resolution of the Board of Directors; and (g) in general perform all duties incident to the office of Secretary and such other duties as from time to time may be assigned to him/her by the President or Board of Directors. (*Amended September 30, 2015)

^{*}Amended 09/30/2015 and 11/20/2015 updates added to 07/02/2011 document and noted, V.11202015

⁺Amended 7/2/2011, updates added to 5-29-03 document and noted

⁵⁻²⁹⁻⁰³ Re-typed from original undated document. According to archived minutes, these by-laws were ratified November 19, 1989.

ARTICLE V

EXPENDITURES, CHECKS AND DEPOSITS

SECTION I. EXPENDITURES: the Board of Directors shall exercise supervision over the finances of the association.

SECTION II. CHECKS, DRAFTS, ETC.: (+) (*) All checks, drafts, or other orders of payment of money, notes or other indebtedness issued in the name of the association and approved by the Board of Directors shall be signed by the President and/or Treasurer.

(*Amended September 30, 2015)

SECTION III. DEPOSITS; All funds of the association not otherwise employed shall be deposited from time to time to the credit of the association in such banks, trust companies or other depositaries as may be selected by or under the authority of the Board of Directors.

ARTICLE VI

BOOKS AND RECORDS

The corporation shall keep correct and complete records of account, minutes of all meetings of the members and Board of Directors, and a record of the current names and addresses of the members. Pursuant to Wis. Stat. § 181.1602(1), upon at least five (5) business days written notice to the Secretary, a member of the Corporation may, at a reasonable time and location specified by the Corporation, inspect and copy any of the following records of the Corporation as described in Wis. Stat. § 181.1601(5): (*)

- a) The Corporations Articles of Incorporation and any amendments thereto;
- b) The Corporations' Bylaws and any amendments thereto;
- c) Resolutions adopted by the Board relating to the characteristics, qualifications, rights, limitations and obligations of members;
- d) The minutes of all meetings of members and records of all actions approved by the members for the past 3 years;
- e) The financial statements furnished to the members for the past 3 years pursuant Wis. Stat. § 181.1620;
- f) A list of the names and business or home addresses of the Corporation's current directors and officers; and
- g) The most recent annual report for the Corporation which was delivered to the Wisconsin Department of Financial Institutions pursuant to Wis. Stat. § 181.1622.

(*Amended September 30, 2015)

^{*}Amended 09/30/2015 and 11/20/2015 updates added to 07/02/2011 document and noted, V.11202015

⁺Amended 7/2/2011, updates added to 5-29-03 document and noted

⁵⁻²⁹⁻⁰³ Re-typed from original undated document. According to archived minutes, these by-laws were ratified November 19, 1989.

ARTICLE VII

FEES. ASSESSMENTS AND ANNUAL DUES

SECTION I. FEES, ASSESSMENTS AND ANNUAL DUES: The Board of Directors may determine from time to time the amount of all fees, assessments and annual dues payable to the corporation by its members.

SECTION II. PAYMENT OF DUES: (*) Dues are due and payable within thirty (30) days of assessment by the Board. In addition to the suspension of a member's park and pier usage, if the dues assessed to a member remain unpaid for a period of sixty (60) days, the Board may lien the member's lot as provided in, and pursuant to, Wis. Stat § 779.70

(*Amended September 30, 2015)

ARTICLE VIII

AMENDMENTS

- (+) The power to alter, amend or repeal the by-laws or adopt new by-laws shall be vested in the Board of Directors subject to the ratification by a simple majority of the membership. In addition, the votes of members not in attendance at a regular meeting or special meeting called for the purpose of the amendment to the By-Laws shall be counted if at least 30 days prior to the day of the meeting, notice of the amendment to the By-Laws is sent out to all members specifying the specific amendments to be voted on and that member returns to the association agreement to the amendment in writing or via e-mail prior to the due date of the meeting. Such action may be taken at a regular meeting or special meeting for which written notice of the purpose shall be given. The by-laws may contain any provisions for the regulation and management of the affairs of the corporation not inconsistent with law or with the Articles of Incorporation
- (*) Pursuant to Article VIII of the By-laws of Cool Hill Park Additions 1 & 2 Property Owners Association, Inc., a Wisconsin nonstock corporation (the "Corporation"), the undersigned, being a majority of the Board of Directors of the Association (the "Board") and a majority of the members of the Corporation, hereby amend the By-Laws as follows: sections Amended/Added *Amended September 30 and November 20, 2015

 $[*]Amended \ 09/30/2015 \ and \ 11/20/2015 \ updates \ added \ to \ 07/02/2011 \ document \ and \ noted, \ V.11202015$

⁺Amended 7/2/2011, updates added to 5-29-03 document and noted

⁵⁻²⁹⁻⁰³ Re-typed from original undated document. According to archived minutes, these by-laws were ratified November 19, 1989.